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RFP No. 1-13-C018 
CNG Vehicle Refueling Station Maintenance and Repair 

for the 
Metropolitan Washington Airports Authority 

 
Questions and Answers 
 
Notice: Questions may have been edited for clarity and relevance. 
 
1. Please confirm the project site is outside the AOA. 
 

Answer: The project site is not on the AOA. 
 
2. What date and time will the site walk and equipment access be scheduled? 
 

Answer: Tuesday, February 18, 2013 at 10 am.  Meet at the CNG fueling station, 
2604 South Clark Street, Arlington, VA 22202. 

 
3. What is the total monthly or annual CNG volume (GGEs) fueled at the station? 

 
Answer: Approximately 84,000 GGE’s per year. 
 

4. What number of vehicles and vehicle models are currently fueled? 
 
Answer: There are a total of six (6) full size buses that are currently fueled.  
 

5. What number of vehicles and vehicle models are currently fueled? 
 

Answer: See Response to question 4. 
 
6. Approximately how much oil is needed weekly for the station equipment? 

 
Answer: Unknown.  The actual amount varies. 
 

7. Is the Authority tax exempt?  
 
Answer: Yes, the Authority is tax exempt.   
 

8. Would the Authority apply its tax exemption on any parts and labor services? 
 
Answer: No.  The Contractor is responsible for all applicable Federal, state, and 
local taxes of all kinds on materials, labor, or services furnished by it or arising out 
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of its operations under the contract. Such taxes shall include, without limitation, 
sales, use, excise, employee benefit and unemployment taxes, customs duties, and 
income taxes. 
 

9. Please confirm that the Offeror may pass through freight charges and all taxes (if 
applicable) on parts supplied. 
 
Answer: Yes.  
 

10. Can the Authority provide any PM records and/or any other maintenance records for 
review? 
 
Answer: No, however, the station has received bi-monthly preventive maintenance 
since the Authority assumed control in May, 2007. 
 

11. What are the certification dates on the relief valves? 
 
Answer: Unknown 
 

12. How old are the storage cylinders? 
 
Answer: Unknown 
 

13. What is the gas and fire detection certification date? 
 
Answer: Unknown 
 

14. Is standby power available / required? 
 
Answer: No.   
 

15.  Section VII-3, 15 Liability Insurance: Clarify if Environmental Impairment Liability 
insurance is required for this maintenance project. If so, the offeror is not able provide the 
Waiver of Subrogation or Notice of Cancellation, non renewal or material change. Our 
coverage can be offered with a blanket additional insured endorsement on the 
Environmental. Is this acceptable? 

 
Answer: Environmental Impairment is required.  Waiver of subrogation requirement 
is not waived.  The notice of cancellation, non-renewal, or material change applies 
to the contractor and not the insurance company.  In addition to the above, Blanket 
additional insured endorsement is acceptable. 

 
16. Section VII-3, 15 Liability Insurance: Clarify if primary wording on any insurance is 

required. If so, would it be acceptable to provide this by including the Airport Authority as 
an Additional Insured for Pollution coverage? 
 
Answer: Yes. See above.  
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17. Section VII-3, 15 Liability Insurance: A. Commercial General Liability:  The Offerior 
performs the majority of the work. If a subcontractor is used, we require that our 
independent contractors or subcontractors provide their own insurance at the same limits 
as required. Would the Airport Authority consider removing the requirement for the 
Proposer to cover independent contractors or subcontractors on our policies?  
 
Answer: No.   

 
18. Section VII-3, 15 Liability Insurance: C. Professional Liability:  Clarify if Professional 

Liability insurance is required for this maintenance project. If so, our policy does not grant 
additional insured designations.  
 
Answer: No.   

 
19. Would the Airport Authority consider adding language to the Contract which states that 

Contractor will not be legally liable or financially responsible for and will not be required to 
excavate, contain, haul, transport, handle, dispose of, remediate or remedy any pre-
existing hazardous substances on the job site or any hazardous substances that migrate 
onto the job site from a third party site? 
 
Answer: Yes.  At contract award, the successful offeror will have 30 calendar days 
to complete a precondition site survey inspection and provide a report identifying 
any issues and recommendations for corrections.   

 
20. Would the Airport Authority consider deleting the following passage Section VII Contract 

Provisions, 18 Disputes, Subsection (D)(2): Monetary claim requested based on a total 
cost approach are prohibited and time extension requests or claims on a total time 
approach are prohibited? 

 
Answer: No. 

 


